Statement of Case and Facts 

This appeal relates to the Florida Public Service 

Commission's ("PSC") decision to restrict the certificated 

interexchange carriers ( "IXCs") from providing their own access 

facilities to connect their customers with their interexchange 

long distance transmission systems. Appellants are IXCs that are 

directly impacted by the PSC's decision, and challenge the PSC's 

authority to impose the bypass restriction. Appellants also 

seek reversal of Order No. 16804 on the basis that it is not 

supported by competent substantial evidence. 

In Order No. 12765, issued December 9, 1983, the PSC 

ordered that the IXCs would not be permitted to construct 

facilities to bypass the local exchange company's ("LEC's") 

access facilities unless it could be demonstrated that the LEC 

could not provide access facilities at a competitive price and in 

a timely manner. Thereafter, in Order No. 13934, issued 

December 21, 1984, the PSC reaffirmed the bypass restriction, but 

stated that this restriction should be continued for an interim 

period until September 1, 1986, when it should be reviewed in 

connection with the PSC's review of LEC toll transmission 

monopoly areas. In Order No. 16804, issued November 4, 1986, 

the PSC decided to maintain the bypass restriction. 

Appellants are AT&T Communications of the Southern States, 
Inc., ( "AT&T1' ) , MCI Telecommunications Corporation ( "MCI" ) and 
MICROTEL, Inc. ("Microtel"). 

Florida PSC Order No. 12765, Docket No. 820537-TP, p.20. 

' Florida PSC Order No. 13934, Docket No. 820537-TP, p.13. 
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The PSC contends that the alternate access restriction, 

which is commonly called "the bypass restriction" and has the 

effect of requiring the IXCs to purchase all of their access 

requirements from the LECs, is necessary in order to maintain 

universal service and to protect the LECs' revenues. At the 

same time, this bypass restriction does not apply to 

customers/end users who may provide their own access facilities 

which bypass the LEC access facilities. Indeed, the LECs have 

been encouraged by the PSC to establish special contract rates 

for customers who have evidenced an intent to provide their own 

access facilities. These customer provided access facilities 

may be connected either to the IXC's interexchange service and 

facilities ("point of presence" or "POP"), or to private 

interexchange facilities owned by the customer. ( See 

illustration on following page.) 

Access facilities and bypass are recent developments in 

the telecommunications industry. Prior to the introduction of 

competition into the provision of long distance telephone 

service, the LECs, either jointly or individually, provided all 

end-to-end long distance telephone service within the State of 

Florida. That is, a long distance call originating from a 

customer's business or residential premises was carried over a 

local phone line (also known as a local loop) to a local switch 

and thence to a toll switch. These local facilities are now also 

Order No. 16804, at p.4. 

Florida PSC Order No. 12765, Docket No. 820537-TP, p.20. 



LOCAL EXCHANGE COMPANY-PIIOVII1ED ACCESS 

o typical access arrangement 

LEC 
Switch IXC > 

Custmer Long Distance 
Telephone Access Facilities Network 

IXC pays access charges to LEC for 
use of LEC access facilities. 

CUs'IDMER-PmDED ACCESS (BYPASS) 

o admittedly outside PSC jurisdiction 

Customer Customer-awned 
Telephone Access Facilities 9 Long Distance 

Network 

Customer awns access facilities. 
No access charges paid to LEC. 

IXC-PROVIDED ACCESS (BYPASS) 

o prohibited by PSC order 

Customer IXC-owned 
Telephone Access Facilities f Long Distance 

Network 

IXC awns access facilities. 
No access charges paid to LEC. 



termed "access facilities". From the toll switch the call was 

connected to LEC-owned toll transmission facilities connecting 

other toll switches serving other local exchange areas within the 

state of Florida. Upon delivery to the appropriate terminating 

toll switch, the call then was carried over local facilities for 

delivery to the called number. The terminating toll switch and 

local facilities would be owned by the same LEC that handled the 

call origination (intracompany), or by another LEC 

(intercompany). 

Compensation for intercompany toll traffic was handled 

through a toll settlements arrangement in which all Florida LECs 

participated. Under this arrangement, all long distance toll 

revenues generated by long distance calls within the State of 

Florida -- both intercompany and intracompany -- were pooled, and 

then distributed to each LEC according to a formula that took 

into account the individual LEC's investment in facilities and 

expenses assigned to the toll service, plus a rate of return. 

The rates for toll calls were uniform, regardless of the 

point of origination or the LEC handling the origination and 

termination of the call. These toll rates were set by the PSC at 

a level which greatly exceeds the direct costs of transporting 

the long distance calls. The purpose behind the inflated toll 

rates was to provide a subsidy from the toll users to support low 

local exchange rates. This process of subsidy became known as 

support for "universal service". "Universal service" embodies 

the concept that all consumers who wish to have local telephone 

service should not be prevented from having service because of 



price. To date, the PSC has concluded that in order to have 

universal service local rates must be held below cost for - all 

consumers, regardless of the individual consumer's ability to 

pay. In other words, toll users have been required by the PSC to 

pay more than the economic cost of making toll calls so that the 

rates for all local exchange customers can be held below the 

actual cost of providing local exchange service. 

Upon the introduction of long distance toll competition, 

and the divestiture of the Bell operating companies from ATbT, 

certain toll routes within the state of Florida became the market 

for the newly certificated IXCs. The IXCs filed their own toll 

tariffs, collected their own revenues, and were not made parties 

to the toll revenue pooling arrangement. In response to this 

very fundamental change in the handling of toll revenues, the PSC 

instituted access charges for compensating the LECs for 

interconnecting the IXC with its customer, and, more importantly, 

for maintaining the toll subsidy. Thus, through access charges, 

the PSC sought to maintain a business-as-usual arrangement in so 

far as making a pool of revenues available to support the rates 

for local exchange services. 

It became quite clear, however, that because access 

charges exceed the economic cost of providing access, the IXC's 

toll rates, which must cover access charges, are also set at an 

inflated level. Hence, there is pressure by the larger toll 

users to find less costly ways of providing access in the hopes 

of receiving lower toll charges. This threat of bypass, which is 

driven in the first instance by the customer's desire to only pay 



toll rates that reflect economic costs, triggered the PSC's 

efforts to combat bypass. In the face of this "threat of 

bypass", and the resultant potential loss of a subsidy flowing 

from toll revenues to the local exchange services, the PSC 

determined that the IXCs, who the PSC concluded were the 

predominant source of potential bypass, must purchase all of 

their access requirements from the LECs. The mechanism used by 

the PSC to achieve this result was to restrict the IXCs from 

providing their own access facilities to reach their 

 customer^.^ While imposing such a restriction on the IXCs, the 

PSC concluded it has no authority to impose a similar restriction 

on customers. 8 

- - - 

Fla. PSC Order No. 13934, p.13. 

In addition to its Orders in the access charge 
proceedings (Docket No. 820537-TP), the PSC also has issued 
orders in connection with the IXCs' certification proceedings 
imposing the same bypass restriction. For example, in Order No. 
12788, which granted AT&T its certificate of convenience and 
necessity, the PSC stated: 

The changing environment of the 
telecommunications industry has raised concerns about 
the interexchange company bypassing the local exchange 
company to provide interexchange service. We know 
bypass is a concern; we do not know the possible extent 
of bypass or the cost of bypass. Since there are so 
many unknowns, we find it appropriate to prohibit AT&T 
from accessing end users (subscribers) for intrastate 
service other than by interconnection with the local 
exchange company's distribution facilities, unless 
expressly authorized by the Commission. AT&T must 
advise the Commission when in a particular market it 
appears more economical to construct bypass facilities 
than to interconnect with the facilities of the local 
exchange company. The Commission will then analyze the 
bypass proposal for acceptance or rejection. 

Order No. 12788, p. 4. 

Hearing Transcript, Docket No. 820537-TP, August 18, 1986, 
p. 41-42. 



It is generally recognized that the threat of bypass can 

be reduced by setting access charges at a level that eliminates 

the subsidy element. The PSC, however, has consistently 

rejected any ratemaking alternative that would remove the subsidy 

element and replace it with a charge which results in an increase 

in local subscriber rates. lo This reluctance to remove the 

subsidy element from access charges allegedly is based on the 

PSC's concern that if the subsidy flowing from toll rates is 

eliminated or reduced, local exchange rates will have to be 

increased by a commensurate amount, thereby jeopardizing the 

PSC's view of universal service. Yet, evidence has never been 

presented in any of the hearings in which access charges and the 

bypass restriction have been considered that removing the subsidy 

element from access charges will necessarily jeopardize universal 

service. 

When the bypass restriction was first imposed on the IXCs 

in Order No. 12765, AT&T, MCI and Microtel requested 

reconsideration of the PSC's bypass restriction on the basis that 

it was an artificial and ineffectual reaction to the threat of 

bypass. The PSC denied reconsideration of the bypass facilities 

restriction, noting that the restriction "is only an interim 

measure at this point", and stating that "an investigation of 

Fla. PSC Order No. 16804, p.5. 

lo Fla. PSC Order No. 12765, p. 20. 



bypass and the development of a different rate structure are 

under way. I, 11 

Thereafter, the bypass restriction was addressed by the 

PSC in Order No. 13934, in which the PSC concluded that, 

"This restriction is still appropriate and should be 
continued until September 1, 1986, when it should be 
reviewed in connection with our review of LEC toll 
transmission monopoly areas. I112 

At the hearings held in August, 1986, on the sole issue 

of whether the bypass restriction ought to be continued, the 

evidence developed during the two days of testimony showed that 

the bypass restriction applies only to IXCs, yet bypass takes 

place today. (Follensbee, Tr. 137-139; Denton, Tr. 16.1 l3 The 

principal source of bypass is the customers themselves and they 

have the technology and skills available to them to bypass not 

only the local exchange network but also the IXC's facilities as 

well. (Follensbee, Tr. 136-138; Denton, Tr. 17) In addition, 

because there is no interstate restriction on bypass, the IXCs 

are bypassing the local exchange network with facilities that 

handle jurisdictionally interstate traffic and services. 

(Denton, Tr. 15, 48, 55.) Finally, the LECs themselves are 

actively engaging in bypass of themselves, as well as other 

LECs. (Cronon, Tr. 174-178.) But, there is no evidence that the 

level of bypass occurring in Florida, where IXCs are restricted, 

l1 Fla. PSC Order No. 13091, pp. 5-6. 

l2 Fla. PSC Order No. 13934, p. 13. 

l3 All transcript references are to the hearing held on August 
18, 1986, in FPSC Docket No. 820537-TP. 



is any lower than or different from the bypass occurring in the 

many other jurisdictions where no such restrictions exist. 

(Follensbee, Tr. 140; Menard, Tr. 99-100.) 

In its Order No. 16804, the PSC rejected the IXCs' 

contentions that the bypass restriction is inefficient and 

ineffective because it does not prevent customer provided 

facilities bypass, and because it fails to address the root cause 

of bypass, which is the high price of switched access, stating: 

"Upon consideration, we find it appropriate to 
retain the bypass restriction until we implement an 
appropriate rate structure for the recovery of NTS 
costs from IXCs and end-users. Therefore, IXCs shall 
not be permitted to construct access facilities to 
bypass the LECs unless it can be demonstrated that the 
LECs cannot offer the access facilities at a 
competitive price and in a timely manner. 

From the outset of this docket we have 
recognized that proper pricing is the correct tool for 
combating uneconomic bypass. The lack of proper 
pricing affects the ability of the LECs to offer 
facilities at competitive prices. However, as we have 
continuously stated, an effective access charge plan 
with the proper pricing and structure requires a 
substantial amount of time to design, implement and 
refine. It was because of SFs time-lag that we 
imposed the bypass restriction." 

- - 

l4 Fla. PSC Order No. 16804, p. 5. 
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SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The PSC is without authority to require the IXCs to 

purchase all of their access requirement from the LECs by 

restricting the IXCs from providing their own access facilities 

for interexchange long distance purposes. Because it is a 

creature of the Legislature, the PSC only has such authority as 

is specifically granted to it by the Legislature. There is no 

general regulatory power which the PSC can rely upon to act in 

areas for which it has no specific statutory authority. 

The PSC has not been given authority pursuant to Section 

364.14, Florida Statutes, to use its ratemaking powers to require 

a customer to obtain a tariffed service from a regulated carrier 

when the customer can provide the service itself. This lack of 

authority also applies when the customer is an IXC. The fact 

that the IXC and the LEC are both entities subject to the 

jurisdiction of the PSC does not overcome the lack of specific 

statutory authority. 

Likewise, the Legislature has not given the PSC 

authority, pursuant to Section 364.335(4), Florida Statutes, to 

limit or restrict the certificates of interexchange carriers in 

whatever fashion the PSC deems appropriate in the name of the 

public interest. The PSC is limited to modifying certificates 

only to the extent necessary to meet specifically identified 

regulatory requirements, and only to the extent that the PSC has 

been granted authority elsewhere in the statutes to do so. 



Finally, assuming, arguendo, that the PSC has the 

requisite statutory authority to impose the bypass restriction on 

the IXCs, contrary to the PSC's assertion that the bypass 

restriction is in the public interest, there is no competent 

substantial evidence supporting the PSC's contention that the 

bypass restriction is either necessary to maintain universal 

service or has been effective in lessening the threat to 

universal service. In particular, there is no basis in the 

record to justify singling out IXCs for unequal treatment, and 

imposing on them a restriction that does not apply to any other 

player. 



ARGUMENT 

THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION HAS NO STATUTORY 
AUTHORITY TO PROHIBIT CERTIFICATED INTEREXCHANGE CARRIERS 
(IXCs) FROM PROVIDING THEIR OWN FACILITIES TO ACCESS THEIR 
CUSTOMERS, OR TO REQUIRE IXCs TO PURCHASE ALL OF THEIR 
ACCESS REQUIREMENTS FROM THE LOCAL EXCHANGE CARRIERS. 

By imposing the bypass restriction on the IXCs, the PSC 

is regulating the IXCs in a manner which has not been authorized 

by the Florida Legislature. 

A. The PSC Is A Creature Of The Legislature And Has Only Such 
Power As Is Specifically Delegated To It. 

Despite its self-proclaimed public interest authority, 

the PSC has no inherent or general authority to regulate the 

public utilities beyond that which is specifically granted to it 

by the Legislature. It is settled law that the PSC, as a 

creature of statute, has only such authority as is conferred by 

statute. Radio Telephone Communications, Inc. v. Southeastern 

Telephone Company, 170 So.2d 577 (Fla. 1964). Moreover, any 

reasonable doubt as to the lawful existence of a particular power 

must be resolved against the exercise thereof. As this Court has 

held, 

"[Tlhe Commission's powers, duties and authority are 
those and only those that are conferred expressly or 
impliedly by statute of the State. . . . Any >easoiable 
doubt as to the lawful existence of a   articular Dower 

L * 
that is being exercised by the Commission must be 
resolved against the exercise thereof, . . . and the 
further exercise of the power should be arrested . . . . The Legislature of Florida has never conferred upon 
the Public Service Commission any general authority to 
regulate public utilities." 



City of Cape Coral v. GAC Utilities, Inc., 281 So.2d at 496 

(citations omitted; emphasis added). See also Aloha Utilities, 

Inc. v. Florida Public Service Commission, 376 So.2d 850, 851 

(Fla. 1979); Florida Bridge Company v. Bevis, 363 So.2d 799, 802 

(Fla. 1978); Deltona Corporation v. Mayo, 342 So.2d 510, 512 

(Fla. 1977); Radio Telephone Communications, Inc. v. Southeastern 

Telephone Company, 170 So.2d 577, 582 (Fla. 1964). 

The PSC Has No Roving Comrnmission Or Catch-all "Public 
Interest" Authority to Impose the Bypass Restriction. 

Lacking any specific authority to impose the bypass 

restriction, the PSC cannot justify its action on the basis of 

some roving commission to protect the public interest. State 

Department of Transportation v. Mayo, 354 So.2d 359 (Fla. 

1977). The PSC has no authority to define "the public interest" 

to suit its needs, but must rely upon the Legislature to give it 

explicit meaning. Microtel, Inc. v. Florida Public Service 

Commission, 464 So.2d 1189 (Fla. 1985). Even where the 

Commission has particular expertise and the matter has special 

public interest connotations, the PSC may not act without 

specific legislative authority. Florida Power 6 Light Co. v. 

Florida Public Service Commission, 471 So.2d 526, 8 F.L.W. 116 

(Fla. 1983). 

The Florida Power 6 Light Co. decision is particularly 

analogous to the instant situation, because that decision deals 

with the authority of the PSC to require electric utilities to 



purchase excess energy capacity from cogenerators. Until the 

United States Congress enacted the Public Utility Regulatory Act 

5 210, 16 U.S.C. 5824a-3(b) (1978), electric utilities were under 

no obligation to interconnect with, purchase power from, or sell 

power to, cogenerators that were located in the electric 

utility's franchised territory. l5 The Florida PSC thereafter 

adopted rules, according to the federal guidelines, governing the 

relationship between the electric utilities subject to PSC 

jurisdiction and the qualifying cogeneration facilities. 16 

Florida Power 6 Light Co. appealed the PSC's Order to this Court 

on the grounds, inter alia, that the PSC lacked authority to 

impose rules requiring the electric utilities to purchase excess 

capacity from cogenerators absent specific state legislative 

enactment. 

This Court agreed that there was no state statutory 

authority for the promulgation of the cogeneration rules, 

stating: 

I is a cornerstone of administrative law that 
administrative bodies or commissions, unless 
specifically created in the Constitution, are creatures 
of statute and derive only the power specified therein. . . . As such they have no inherent power to 
promulgate rules, but must derive that power from a 
statutory base. Those rules which attempt to define or 
prescribe action set forth in a statute are considered 
legislative in nature and are designed to implement, 
interpret or prescribe law or policy. . . " 

l5 American Paper Institute, Inc. v. American Electric Power 
Service Corp., 461 U.S. 402 (1983); FERC v. Mississippi, 456 U.S. 
742 (1982). 

l6 Florida PSC Order No. 9970. 



Id. at 116 (citations omitted). The significant point of this - 
decision is that even though the federal legislation commanded 

that the electric utilities purchase excess capacity, and even 

though such purchase was deemed to be in the public interest, the 

PSC could not regulate in this area and command the purchase of 

excess generating capacity without specific state statutory 

authority. Of equal importance and application here, during the 

time the matter was pending before the Court, the Legislature 

enacted legislation granting the PSC the power necessary to 

regulate this area. 17 

In the instant case, there has been significant federal 

intervention in the telecommunications industry, requiring an

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