# IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDE

J. J. WHITE

AT&T COMMUNICATIONS OF THE SOUTHERN STATES, INC., et al.,

Appellants,

VS.

JOHN R. MARKS, et al.,

Appellees.

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

CASE NO. 69,732

On Appeal From The Florida Public Service Commission

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE, UNITED TELEPHONE COMPANY OF FLORIDA

Alan N. Berg General Attorney United Telephone Company of Florida Post Office Box 5000 Altamonte Springs, FL 32715-5000 (305) 889-6018

##

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

## SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Appellants' Brief presents three arguments: 1) No statutory authority exists for FPSC Order No. 16804, 2) FPSC Order No. 16804 interferes with the management discretion of the IXCs, and 3) FPSC Order 16804 is not based on competent substantial evidence.

Statutory authority can be found in either Section 364.335, Florida Statutes (1985), or Section 364.14, Florida Statutes (1985). Each of these statutory sections contains a fundamental policy decision of the legislature, and standards and guidelines sufficient to satisfy the doctrine of non-delegation legislative authority. Appellants' in their efforts to discredit reliance on Section 364.14, Florida Statutes, based on the case of United Telephone Company v. Florida Public Service Commission, 496 So.2d 116 (Fla. 1986), fail to recognize that the dispute in that case involved a contract between utilities, and the present case involves access to customers. 16 U.S.C.A. Section 824e cited by the Appellants does deal with ratepayer issues; the access to customer issues in this case also affect ratepayers. The federal statute cited also does not contain a subsection equivalent to Section 364.14(2), Florida Statutes, which deals with inefficient practices of telephone companies, such as the uneconomic bypass prohibited by the Order in question.

The management discretion argument of Appellants fails to recognize that all regulation to some degree interferes with management discretion. If such regulation has a statutory basis, which is lawfully delegated, and the FPSC has not failed to

comport with the essential requirements of law, has not acted arbitrarily or capriciously, and has based its Order on competent and substantial evidence, such interference cannot be found to be unreasonable. The management discretion argument by Appellants' continues the lack of concern for the customer and the public interest displayed throughout the Appellants' Brief. Nowhere do the Appellants state that the result they seek will have any benefit for the ratepayer or the public.

The Appellants' competent substantial evidence argument is nothing more than a request to the Court to reweigh the evidence and reach a different conclusion than the FPSC. Ample competent substantial evidence is cited in the Order in question to support the Order, and the record is replete with further evidence to support the Order.

The Order in question should be upheld.

#### ARGUMENT

## POINT I

## FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION ORDER NO. 16804 IS BASED ON STATUTORY AUTHORITY.

Orders of the FPSC "come before this Court clothed with the statutory presumption that they have been made within the Commission's powers. jurisdiction and and that thev are reasonable and just and such as ought to have been made." General Telephone Co. v. Carter, 115 So.2d 554, 556 (Fla. 1959) (footnote omitted). See also Citizens v. Florida Public Service Commission, 448 So.2d 1024, 1026 (Fla. 1984).

This deference does not apply when the FPSC exceeds its authority. At the outset, the grant of legislative authority to the FPSC must be established. <u>United Telephone Company v. Public Service Commission</u>, 496 So.2d 116 (Fla. 1986).

FPSC Order No. 16804 cites Sections 364.335(4) and 364.14, Florida Statutes (1985), as the underlying statutory authority for the Order.

Section 364.335(4), Florida Statutes, states in part:

(4) The commission may grant a certificate, in whole or part or with modifications in the public interest, but in no event granting authority greater than that requested in the application or amendments thereto and noticed under subsection (1); or it may deny a certificate. The commission shall not grant a certificate for a proposed telephone company, or for the extension of any existing telephone company, which will be in competition with or duplicate the local exchange services provided by any other telephone company unless it first determines that the existing facilities are inadequate to meet the reasonable needs of the public and it first amends the certificate of such other telephone company to remove the basis for competition or duplication services . . .

Telephone company is defined in Section 364.02, Florida Statutes, as follows:

The term "telephone company," when used in this chapter, includes every corporation, company, association, joint stock association, partnership, and person and their lessees, trustees, or receivers appointed by any court whatsoever, and every city or town, owning, operating, or managing any telephone line or part of a telephone line used in the conduct of the business of affording telephonic communication service for hire within this state . . .

Under Section 364.335(4), Florida Statutes, the FPSC is empowered to issue certificates of public convenience and necessity to telephone companies with modifications of those certificates in the public interest.

Interexchange carriers, such as the Appellants in this case, are telephone companies within the definition of Section 364.02, Florida Statutes, subject to regulation by the FPSC, and required to obtain certificates of public convenience and necessity from the FPSC.

Each of the Appellant IXCs has such a certificate and each of those certificates contains modifying language which prohibits those IXCs from accessing end users for intrastate service other than by interconnection with the local exchange company's distribution facilities unless expressly authorized by the Commission. (See for example, FPSC Order No. 12788, page 4, applicable to AT&T, a copy of which is included in the Appendix to this Brief at page A-51).

The modifying language appearing in the Appellants' certificates can also be found in several FPSC Orders which are

outlined in the Statement of the Case in this Brief. The Appellants made no appeal to this Court when the language requiring interconnection through LEC facilities was included in their Certificates. The Appellants did not appeal FPSC Order No. 12765, which originally imposed the uneconomic access bypass restriction, nor did they appeal the bypass restriction found in FPSC Order Nos. 13750, 13912, or 13934, all of which reaffirmed the uneconomic bypass restriction. If such inaction on the part of the Appellants' does not lead to estoppel at this late date, it at least establishes the presumption that the Appellants found no lack of statutory authority at the time their certificates and the subsequent FPSC Orders listed above were issued. The uneconomic access bypass restriction found in the certificates and FPSC Orders were not appealed for good reason: The FPSC has not been acting without statutory authority.

Section 364.335(4), Florida Statutes, establishes the authority of the FPSC to issue certificates with modifications in the public interest. Such modifications have been made to the certificates of the Appellants. Subsequent FPSC Orders have reaffirmed the modifications. The authority to make the modifications was lawfully delegated by the Legislature to the FPSC with the required standards and guidelines.

The case of <u>Askew v. Cross Key Waterways</u>, 372 So.2d 913 (Fla. 1978), describes the doctrine of non-delegation of legislative power as follows:

Under this doctrine fundamental and primary policy decisions shall be made by members of the legislature who are elected to perform those tasks, and administration of legislative

programs must be pursuant to some minimal standards and guidelines ascertainable by reference to the enactment establishing the program. (At page 925)

Section 364.335(4), Florida Statutes, quoted above, gives the FPSC authority to modify certificates in the public interest. When dealing with competitive or duplicative service, such as access to end users, Section 364.337, Florida Statutes establishes guidelines for determining whether actions authorized by the FPSC are consistent with the public interest. The FPSC has not relied on any inherent or general authority to regulate public utilities. It has relied on Section 364.335, Florida Statutes, which reflects a fundamental policy decision of the legislature and contains requisite standards and guidelines. See Microtel, Inc. v. Florida Public Service Commission, 464 So.2d 1189, 1191 (Fla. 1985) (Microtel I). Section 364.337, Florida Statutes, establishes the required minimal standards and guidelines for the FPSC to apply the public interest standard created by the legislature. Id, at 1190-1191.

The requirements of <u>Askew v. Cross Key Waterways</u>, supra, have been met by both the Legislature and the FPSC. FPSC Order No. 16804 is supported by statutory authority and that authority has been lawfully delegated.

FPSC Order No. 16804 also relies on Section 364.14, Florida Statutes, for statutory authority. Section 364.14 has two subsections. Subsection (1) is substantially similar to 16 U.S.C.A. Section 824e.

The Appellants argue in their Brief that 364.14, Florida Statutes, applies only to ratepayers, and does not confer

jurisdiction upon the FPSC to impose a bypass restriction on the IXCs. The Appellants rely on the  $\underline{\text{United Telephone}}$ , supra, case to support this conclusion.

The decision in the <u>United</u> case was based partly on 16 U.S.C.A. Section 824e, which is a statute outlining powers of the Federal Power Commission. Section 824e(a) states:

Whenever the Commission, after a hearing had upon its own motion or upon complaint, shall find that any rate, charge, or classification, demanded, observed, charged, or collected by any public utility for any transmission or sale subject to the jurisdiction of the Commission, or that any rule, regulation, practice, or contract affecting such rate, classification charge, or is unjust, unreasonable, unduly discriminatory preferential, the Commission shall determine just and reasonable rate. classification, rule, regulation, practice, or contract to be thereafter observed and in force, and shall fix the same by order.

Section 824e(b) deals with the costs of production or transmission of electrical energy.

United agrees with the Appellants that 16 U.S.C.A. Section 826e(a) applies to rates and practices applied to ratepayers.

The instant case does not involve FPSC interference with a contract between two utilities as did the  $\underline{\text{United}}$  case cited above. The case at issue involves access by the IXCs to ratepayers, which falls within purview of Section 364.14(a). If access to

<sup>1/</sup> Appellants' characterization of their own status changes based on the point they are trying to make. The Appellants deny ratepayer status in their argument concerning the applicability of Section 364.14, Florida Statutes (Appellants' Brief at page 16), but later, to make the point that the FPSC cannot force customers to buy telephone service, they refer to themselves as customers of the LECs (Appellants' Brief at page 22). Since the terms ratepayer and customer are generally used interchangeably, this is particularly confusing and tends to impede a rational analysis of the Appellants' position.

ratepayers by the IXC is achieved in an uneconomic manner, it affects the rates not only of the uneconomically accessed IXC ratepayers, but all ratepayers for telephone service within the State of Florida.

The issue decided by FPSC Order No. 16804 is a rate and ratepayer issue, not a dispute between utility companies. The FPSC has properly relied on Section 364.14(1) as support for FPSC Order No. 16804.

Subsection (2) of Section 364.14, Florida Statutes, states:

Whenever the commission finds that the practices regulations. or telephone company are unjust or unreasonable that the equipment or facilities, service of any telephone company are inefficient, improper inadequate, insufficient, the commission shall determine the just, reasonable, proper, adequate and efficient rules, regulations. practices. equipment, facilities, and service to thereafter installed, observed, and used and the same by order rule fix or hereinafter provided.

The federal statute relied on in the <u>United</u> case cited above, 16 U.S.C.A. Section 826e, does not have a section which is the equivalent of Section 364.14(2), Florida Statutes, quoted above. Section 314.14(2) is not restricted to rate matters, and deals in part with practices of a telephone company which are inefficient or improper.

The FPSC concluded in FPSC Order No. 16804 that access bypass by an IXC where an LEC could provide equivalent service at a competitive price and in a timely manner is uneconomic. (p. 5-6) If it is uneconomic, it is also inefficient and affects the ratepayers, and is within the purview of either subsection of

Section 364.14, and subject to FPSC review.

The uneconomic bypass of LEC access facilities by IXCs for intrastate traffic, is an inefficient and inadequate practice. The FPSC has properly restricted it under the authority of Section 364.14(2), Florida Statutes.

A statutory basis for FPSC Order No. 16804 can be found in either Section 364.335, Florida Statutes or Section 364.14, Florida Statutes.

## POINT II

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION ORDER NO. 16804 DOES NOT EXCEED THE STATUTORY AUTHORITY OF THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION.

Having found in Point I above that FPSC Order No. 16804 is based on statutory authority, the FPSC Order in question must be examined to determine if the FPSC has exceeded the authority granted by the Legislature.

The scope of the FPSC's authority under Section 364.335, Florida Statutes, was examined in the case of Microtel v. Florida Public Service Commission, 483 So.2d 415 (Fla. 1986) (Microtel II). In that case, this Court found that although legislative policy was to encourage competition in the provision of long distance telephone service within the State of Florida, the FPSC had not exceeded its authority by temporarily establishing toll transmission monopoly areas within equal access exchange areas.

In <u>Microtel II</u>, the Court established a three part test, and found the FPSC action was limited in scope, limited in time, and that the toll transmission monopoly areas were in the public interest.

Access to end users is a local service for which no legislative policy encouraging competition can be cited, but even if it is assumed for the purpose of argument, that access is a competitive service, subject to the <u>Microtel II</u> three part test, the uneconomic access bypass restriction passes the test.

The restriction is limited in scope. The restriction limits bypass of LEC access facilities by IXCs only in those cases where the LEC can provide the access in a timely manner and at competitive prices. If an IXC desires to bypass, it need only file a notice of intent to bypass and its cost for the access facilities with the FPSC and the affected LEC. The LEC must then provide its cost to provide the facilities, and the time required to provide them. If the LEC fails to demonstrate it can provide the facilities at a lower cost and in a more timely manner, the IXC, upon approval of the FPSC, may provide the facilities. (FPSC Order No. 16804, page 6)

This procedure insures the most efficient provision of access facilities to the ratepayers. It effectively limits the uneconomic access bypass restriction to those cases in which it is uneconomic to bypass.

The restriction is not a complete ban on bypass by the IXCs. They can still engage in access bypass for interstate traffic which is outside the FPSC jurisdiction. The IXCs can encourage customers who desire a direct connection to the IXC to construct their own facilities; again this is outside the jurisdiction of the FPSC. (T 94, 48) Service bypass, which is using special access facilities in place of switched access to reach an IXC can

also continue to be used. (T 20)

The uneconomic access bypass restriction found in FPSC Order No. 16804 is not a restriction on all bypass of LEC access facilities. It is aimed at only uneconomic bypass of LEC facilities by IXCs subject to regulation by the FPSC. While numerous methods of bypass exist which avoid the bypass restriction, the FPSC should not avoid, and has not avoided, seeking to control those forms of uneconomic bypass over which it can exercise some control.

The uneconomic access bypass restriction is also limited in time. Numerous reference throughout FPSC Order No. 16804 point out that the restriction is an interim measure.

Page 4 of the Order states:

In Order No. 12765, in an effort to provide the LECs with tools to combat bypass, we outlined several mechanisms which we intend to implement within the structure of charges. These include contract rates for large private line customers, volume discount tariffs rates to large users of both MTS and private line type services, and a flat rate capacity charge to IXCs to encourage off-peak usage of LEC facilities. Recognizing that this access plan would time require implement and refine, we imposed the bypass restriction as an interim step to protect the LECS during the transition. (Emphasis added)

Page 5 of the Order states:

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